Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in David Hicks 1 - Civic Offices,
Shute End, Wokingham RG40 1BN on MONDAY 19
NOVEMBER 2018 AT 7.00 PM

Heather Thwaites
Acting Chief Executive
Published on 9 November 2018
The role of Overview and Scrutiny is to provide independent “critical friend”
challenge and to work with the Council’s Executive and other public service
providers for the benefit of the public. The Committee considers submissions
from a range of sources and reaches conclusions based on the weight of
evidence – not on party political grounds.
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this
meeting. The use of these images or recordings is not under the Council’s
control.

The Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee aims to
focus on:
The promotion of public
health and patient care
The needs and interests of
Wokingham Borough
The performance of local
NHS Trusts

MEMBERSHIP OF THE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Councillors
Bill Soane (Chairman)
Jenny Cheng
Clive Jones
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey
Substitutes
Prue Bray
Mike Haines
ITEM
NO.

WARD

21.
22.

Kate Haines (Vice-Chairman) Parry Batth
Andy Croy
John Jarvis
Abdul Loyes
Ken Miall

Rachel Burgess
Ian Pittock

Carl Doran
Malcolm Richards

SUBJECT

PAGE
NO.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence
None Specific

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on
17 September 2018.

23.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

24.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions

5-8

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of this committee.
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Committee or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions
25.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions

26.

None Specific

UPDATE ON SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE
SERVICE
To receive an update on the work of South Central
Ambulance Service (30 mins)

9 - 44

27.

None Specific

DIABETES PREVENTION
To receive an update on diabetes prevention.

45 - 58

(25 mins)
28.

None Specific

HEALTHWATCH UPDATE
To receive an update on the work of Healthwatch
Wokingham Borough. (15 mins)

59 - 62

29.

None Specific

FORWARD PROGRAMME 2018-19
To receive the Forward Programme for the remainder
of the municipal year. (5 mins)

63 - 72

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading.

Madeleine Shopland
Tel
Email
Postal Address

CONTACT OFFICER
Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
0118 974 6319
madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 22.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 FROM 7.00 PM TO 8.25 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Bill Soane (Chairman), Jenny Cheng, Andy Croy, John Jarvis, Clive Jones,
Ken Miall and Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey
Others Present
Dr Cathy Winfield, NHS Berkshire West CCG
Dr Stephen Madgwick, NHS Berkshire West CCG
Madeleine Shopland, Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
Julie Hotchkiss, Interim Consultant Public Health
Tony Lloyd
12.
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Parry Batth and Kate Haines, Jim
Stockley and Nicola Strudley.
13.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 16 July 2018 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.
14.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
15.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions.
16.
MEMBER QUESTION TIME
There were no Member questions.
17.
BERKSHIRE WEST INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM
Dr Cathy Winfield updated the Committee on the Berkshire West Integrated Care System.
During the discussion of this item the following points were made:







An Integrated Care System (ICS) was one in which local NHS organisations (both
commissioners and providers), often in partnership with local authorities, chose to
take on clear collective responsibility for resources and population health, providing
joined up, better coordinated care.
Members were informed of the membership of the Berkshire West Integrated Care
System (ICS), including the Berkshire West 10.
In response to a Member question regarding surgery size and the geography of the
ICS, Dr Winfield commented that there were a number of smaller practices within
the Reading area. However, national policy was now predicated on the principle of
larger practices with larger premises, with a minimum of approximately 10,000
patients.
The Committee noted the founding principles, including ensuring a high quality, fit
for purpose acute specialist hospital service.

5





















When developing the system, integration systems around the world had been
considered. The New Zealand Canterbury model had been considered a good
approach.
Dr Winfield informed the Committee that it was anticipated that a long term plan for
the NHS would be published prior to Christmas.
Some of the achievements one year on were outlined. Local Authority partners
were identifying greater opportunities for joint working that improve efficiency of the
whole system e.g. single social worker team at Royal Berkshire Hospital.
From 1 October pre bookable GP appointments would be available 7 days a week.
In response to a question from Councillor Jones, it was clarified that cluster
arrangements would be in operation under which a practice within a cluster would
offer pre bookable appointments outside of normal GP appointment hours. On
Sundays and Bank Holidays the service would be provided by Westcall. Evidence
suggested that demand for a pre bookable GP appointment on Sundays was low.
Demand for pre bookable appointments outside of normal opening hours would be
monitored.
Councillor Soane questioned whether information was available regarding the
number of patients who had attended A&E who should have gone elsewhere. Dr
Winfield indicated that the proximity that an individual lived to the hospital
sometimes made a difference as to whether they visited A&E if they were unable to
make alternative arrangements.
Dr Winfield highlighted that a GP was now situated in A&E. The nurse screener who
triaged patients could direct those who needed to see a GP but did not need to
attend A&E, to this GP. Councillor Miall asked how many patients who were
referred to the GP were then referred back to A&E. Members were assured that it
was a small number and work was being carried out to further improve the triage
process.
Councillor Jones asked how often a GP was situated in A&E and was informed that
it was every day but that hours varied. Dr Winfield indicated that she would provide
information regarding specific hours.
104 patients had visited A&E over 50 times in a year. Work such as health
coaching was being undertaken with these individuals to reduce this.
It was hoped that expanding availability of GP appointments would help to reduce
inappropriate use of A&E. Members were informed that further work around
specific clinical pathways would also help to reduce the number of attendances at
A&E. For example if a patient arrived at the hospital and was obviously having a
stroke they would not necessarily have to go to A&E.
Councillor Jones asked whether Royal Berkshire Hospital had discussed the
possible free use of on street parking around the hospital for patients and visitors,
with Reading Borough Council.
Members questioned how patients’ experience was measured. Dr Winfield
commented that Friends and Family Tests helped to measure this and that some
patients were helping to improve particular pathways such as the musculoskeletal
pathway.
The 4 hour A&E wait target was discussed. Dr Madgwick explained that this was a
national target and that whilst it may seem a long time it was a good target for the
overall system. Those who required urgent treatment were still seen very quickly
and patients were triaged within 15 minutes of arrival.
Councillor Miall referred to Push Doctor, an online medical consultation service
which connected users to a GP for a secure online video consultation for a fee of
£30, which Wokingham Medical Centre currently made use of. He questioned
whether greater use could be made of apps such as this. Dr Winfield stated that

6










sometimes there could be issues around access to records and continuity of care.
Nevertheless, there was a primary care workstream in place which was exploring
opportunities provided by technology.
Councillor Shepherd-DuBey questioned whether a local app could be developed.
The Committee discussed GP appointments and the primary care workforce. The
Committee was reminded that nationally there was a shortage of GPs and that only
15% of qualified medical graduates were expected to become GPs. Different ways
of working and diversifying the workforce, such as the placement of paramedics,
advanced practioners and pharmacists in surgeries, were in place. International
recruitment of GPs had not been as successful as had been hoped.
Councillor Croy asked about the possible impact of Brexit on health and social care
locally. Dr Winfield commented that there was likely to be some impact with
regards to workforce. Numbers of applications for nursing posts from candidates
from European countries, had decreased.
Councillor Croy went on to ask about the impact of Brexit on pharmaceutical supply
and was informed that a plan was being developed at national level.
It was noted that the CCGs in Berkshire West had merged. Councillor Croy asked
how much per year this would save and was informed that it was approximately
£650,000.
Tony Lloyd questioned whether the requirement to put services out to tender would
potentially be a threat to integration.

RESOLVED: That the update on the Berkshire West Integrated Care System be noted.
18.
HIP AND KNEE SURGERY POLICY
Dr Winfield updated the Committee on the CCG Policy for patients with osteoarthritis;
primary hip and knee replacement.
During the discussion of this item the following points were made:









The four CCGs in Berkshire West had reviewed and updated their policy for
patients with osteoarthritis; primary hip and knee replacement, in June 2018. An
evidence based criteria had been established to identify those patients most likely
to benefit from surgery. GPs referring patients to hospital must ensure that the
patient met the criteria in order for the hospital to accept them.
Members were informed that there had been significant success locally for patients
with the opportunity to discuss the full range of options available away from the GP
Surgery. The CCG commissioned this service from Arthritis Care. Patients had the
opportunity to participate in a shared decision making where they considered all
options available. GPs could still refer a patient for surgery if there was a clinical
need.
The Committee was informed that when comparing nationally Berkshire West spent
more on hip and knee surgery than would be expected. Councillor Croy asked how
this spend could be reduced. Dr Winfield commented that the policy gave GPs the
opportunity to set out alternative options to surgery, where appropriate.
The Committee was pleased to note that approximately 75% of patients chose
conservative methods to manage their condition such as exercise or weight loss as
opposed to surgery.
Patients within Berkshire West were treated within the 18 week referral to treatment
standard. Some patients felt that they were moved along the pathway too quickly.

7

RESOLVED: That the update on the CCG Policy for patients with osteoarthritis; primary
hip and knee replacement be noted.
19.
HEALTHWATCH UPDATE
The Committee considered the update from Healthwatch Wokingham Borough. Councillor
Jarvis informed the Committee of the Healthwatch Fun Day at Twyford.
RESOLVED: That the update from Healthwatch Wokingham Borough be noted.
20.
FORWARD PROGRAMME 2018-19
The Committee considered the forward programme for the remainder of the municipal
year.
During the discussion of this item the following points were made:







Councillor Jones suggested that the Committee receive an update on diabetes
prevention at the November meeting.
Members requested an update from South Central Ambulance Service at the
Committee’s November meeting. Councillor Shepherd-DuBey questioned how the
Ambulance Service, Police and Fire Service were working together.
An update on the pressure on GP resources would be provided at the Committee’s
January meeting.
Councillor Shepherd-DuBey requested an update about the possible impact of
Brexit on the local health service for the Committee’s March meeting.
Councillor Jones requested an update on the discharge of patients from the Royal
Berkshire Hospital and the impact of the Better Care Fund on this, at the March
Committee meeting.
Tony Lloyd informed the Committee that the Royal Berkshire Hospital NHS Trust
would, from the next week, be going paperless.

RESOLVED: That the forward programme be noted.

8

SCAS Engagement Update
9

Agenda Item 26.

Agenda

10

•
•
•
•
•

ARP update
Performance
Lord Carter Review
CQC
Urgent Care Pathways

ARP PRINCIPLES
What does the
patient need?

The right vehicle

What does ATs
need to consider
?
Less on scene
time for
RRVs

11

The right skill

The right time, within time , every time

Reduced
diverts
Less multivehicle
deployments

What are the new categories
CATEGORY 1 - LIFE-THREATENING
Time critical life-threatening event needing immediate intervention and/or resuscitation e.g. cardiac or
respiratory arrest; airway obstruction; ineffective breathing; unconscious with abnormal or noisy breathing;
hanging.

CATEGORY 2 - EMERGENCY
Potentially serious conditions (ABCD problem) that may require rapid assessment, urgent on-scene
intervention and/or urgent transport.

12

CATEGORY 3 – URGENT
Urgent problem (not immediately life-threatening) that needs treatment to relieve suffering (e.g. pain
control) and transport or assessment and management at scene with referral where needed within a
clinically appropriate timeframe.
CATEGORY 4 – NON-URGENT
Problems that are not urgent but need assessment (face to face or telephone) and possibly transport within
a clinically appropriate timeframe.
TYPE S – SPECIALIST RESPONSE (HART)
Incidents requiring specialist response i.e. hazardous materials; specialist rescue; mass casualty

Categories

National Standard

7 minutes mean
response time
Category 1
15 minutes 90th centile
response time

The first ambulance service-dispatched
emergency responder arrives at the scene of
the incident
(There is an additional Category 1 transport
standard to ensure that these patients also
receive early ambulance transportation)

If a patient is transported by an emergency
vehicle, only the arrival of the transporting
vehicle stops the clock. If the patient does not
need transport the first ambulance servicedispatched emergency responder arrives at the
scene of the incident

120 minutes 90th
centile response time

The earliest of:
•The problem is identified
•An ambulance response is
dispatched
•240 seconds from the call being
connected

If a patient is transported by an emergency
vehicle, only the arrival of the transporting
vehicle stops the clock. If the patient does not
need transport the first ambulance servicedispatched emergency responder arrives at the
scene of the incident

180 minutes 90th
centile response time

The earliest of:
•The problem is identified
•An ambulance response is
dispatched
•240 seconds from the call being
connected

Category 4T:
If a patient is transported by an emergency
vehicle, only the arrival of the transporting
vehicle stops the clock.

13

Category 2

Category 4

The earliest of:
•The problem is identified
•An ambulance response is
dispatched
•30 seconds from the call being
connected

What stops the clock?

The earliest of:
•The problem is identified
•An ambulance response is
dispatched
•240 seconds from the call being
connected

18 minutes mean
response time

Category 3

How long does the ambulance
service have to make a
decision?

40 minutes 90th centile
response time

ARP Apr – Oct 18 – Wokingham CCG Area

14

Key benefits
Ensuring a timely response to patients with life-threatening conditions



The most appropriate clinical resource to meet the needs of patients based on
presenting conditions not simply the nearest



Fewer multiple dispatches = increased efficiency



Reduction in diversion of resources



Increasing the ability to support patients through hear and treat, see and treat



Having a transporting resource available for patients who need to be taken to a
definitive place of care



Improved patient experience



Provides staff with greater role satisfaction – doing the right thing for patients

15



Comparison to Pre ARP Year on Year

16

ARP Cat 1 Response – Wokingham Vs SCAS

17

Average Cat 1 calls – Wokingham CCG

18

Monthly Cat 1 comparison April-Oct 18

19

Demand and Patient Outcome

20

Actions

21

• Midway through transformation
programme to align staff to patients
• RRV redeployed to Bracknell and
Winnersh to cover East and West
Wokingham
• Ambulance remodelling in progress

Lord Carter of Coles
22

Review of Ambulance
Services

• Lord Carter review was to assess
where efficiencies can be gained
across the ambulance sector
• Identified significant unwarranted
variations across the English
ambulance services
23

• Demand increases on average by 6%
annually
• 9 out of 10 of these calls were not life
threatening

• 60% of the patients attended were
taken to hospital
• Tackling avoidable conveyance to
hospital could release capacity
equivalent to £300m in the acute
sector

Delivering Effective Urgent & Emergency Care

• Lord Carter identified 3 structural issues in the provision
of health services which need to be strengthened.

24

1. Ability to access general practice and Community Services to
avoid unnecessary conveyance
2. Urgent Treatment Centres to avoid conveyance to the acute
trust
3. Hospital Handover Delays impact heavily on ambulance
services ability to respond to patients in a timely manner and
cost the ambulance service nearly £50million last winter

National Performance

25

Incident Response types

26

Job Cycle Time

27

Impact of Hospital Delays - RBH

28

Impact of Hospital Delays - FPH

29

SCAS Carter review results

30

SCAS Top Quartile results

31

SCAS Mid Quartile results

32

SCAS bottom Quartile results

33

Operational improvements required

1.

2.
34

3.

Ambulance Staff need greater clinical and managerial support to
ensure they feel confident treating patients over the phone or in
their home and are supported by rotas that match patient demand
New technology needs to be adopted quicker and trusts need to
develop robust plans to rapidly improve the resilience of the
infrastructure.
Effective fleet management where trusts operate a standard fleet
and standard equipment enhancing technologies such as black
box recorders and CCTV. Over £200m is spent on ambulance fleet
per year. Fleet of approximately 5,000 vehicles and 32 different
types of ambulance

Recommendations

35

1. Enabling effective bench marking
2. Delivering the right model of care and reducing the avoidable
conveyance to hospital
3. Efficient use of resources
4. Optimising Workforce, wellbeing and engagement
5. Effective Fleet Management
6. Improving performance and strengthening resilience and
interoperability
7. Developing the digital ambulance
8. Maximising use of non clinical resource
9. Delivering Effective Implementation

36

37

CQC Update

CQC 2016

38

CQC 2018

39

CQC Update 2018

40

41

Urgent Care Pathways

Aims & Objectives
An integrated streamlined approach
> Enabling people to access right care: first time - every time
> Saving lives and improving outcomes
42

> Supporting people in their own homes

Aims & Objectives

43

“SCAS will deliver an integrated and streamlined
approach across our network to improve patient
outcomes.
By working with our local care system partners, we will
ensure our patients access the most appropriate care
according to their needs, first time, every time.”

Thank you
44

Any questions

Agenda Item 27.
TITLE

Diabetes prevention

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on Monday,
19 November 2018

WARD

None Specific;

KEY OFFICER

Julie Hotchkiss, Interim Consultant in Public Health

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Any actions which result in reducing obesity and preventing diabetes will improve the
health of those residents, and reduce health and social care costs associated with
diabetes.
RECOMMENDATION
That Members note the report.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
Diabetes is a growing problem which causes illness, suffering and early death, as well
as placing huge demands on health services and eventually social care when
complications have developed.
Catching people when their blood sugar is raised, but not high enough to be classified
as diabetes, enables intervention which can arrest or reverse the development of
diabetes in many cases.
A national programme, Healthier You, to provide these interventions to suitable people
is in a process of rollout and Wokingham is now entering the third year of
implementation.
There have been a number of teething problems with the roll out of Healthier You, but a
new provider started recently and the situation is improving.

45

Background
The prevalence of diabetes continues to rise in Britain. The increase is in Type 2
diabetes which is the type which stereotypically we associate with middle-aged people
who were overweight. However, not all people who develop Type 2 diabetes are
overweight, and the growing number of young people who are very overweight means
that we now have some children diagnosed with Type 2 diabetes.
Diabetes affects the circulatory system, and damage occurs to the blood vessels in the
heart, brain, eyes, legs and kidneys, giving rise to complications including heart attacks,
strokes, blindness, amputations and kidney failure. This is apart from the impact it has
on mental health, its impact on the finances of the individual and impact on the family.
About 22,000 people a year die earlier than they would have done if they didn’t have
diabetes.
One in six of all people in hospital have diabetes – while diabetes is often not the
reason for admission, they often need a longer stay in hospital, are more likely to be re
admitted and their risk of dying is higher.
There are currently 3.4 million people with Type 2 diabetes in England with around
200,000 new diagnoses every year. While Type 1 diabetes cannot be prevented and is
not linked to lifestyle, Type 2 diabetes is largely preventable through lifestyle changes.
As well as the human cost, Type 2 diabetes treatment accounts for just under nine per
cent of the annual NHS budget. This is around £8.8 billion a year.
There are currently five million people in England at high risk of developing Type 2
diabetes. If current trends persist, one in three people will be obese by 2034 and one in
10 will develop Type 2 diabetes.
There is strong international evidence which demonstrates how behavioural
interventions, which support people to maintain a healthy weight and be more active,
can significantly reduce the risk of developing the condition.
The Healthier You: NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme (NDPP) identifies those at
high risk and refers them onto a behaviour change programme. It is part of the national
programme which by 2020 is expected to provide support to 100,000 individuals each
year.
Those referred to the service receive tailored, personalised support to reduce their risk
of Type 2 diabetes including education on healthy eating and lifestyle, help to lose
weight and physical exercise programmes, all of which together have been proven to
reduce the risk of developing the disease.
The programme consists of the following stages:





Stage 1: Initial one-to-one assessment with a Health & Wellbeing coach to assess
health and take measurements, including height, weight, waist circumference and a
finger jab blood sample if required
Stage 2: Joining a Healthy Foundations group, which consists of two elements; X-PERT
Health nutrition sessions and physical activity drawing on healthy lifestyle advice
Stage 3: Moving on to the Prevention Plus group sessions which builds on the dietary
knowledge gained during the Healthy Foundations sessions

46



Stage 4: Review at 6 and 9 months, with repeat measurements
Before a person can be referred, they must be found to have a persistently raised blood
sugar. There is a blood test which measures a chemical which varies according to
blood sugar levels in the previous 3 months, this chemical is known as HbA1c.
Normally this blood test would only be carried out of there was a suspicion that the
person might have diabetes. Over a certain level (48 mmol/mmol) the person is
diagnosed with diabetes. People whose HbA1c level lies within the band 42 to 47.9 are
considered to be “at risk”. The terms pre-diabetes and Impaired Glucose Tolerance
(IGT) were used previously and mean the same thing.
People known to be at risk of diabetes by their general practice are being identified by
electronically searching the medical records, and these people are then sent a letter
inviting them to ring Healthier You to arrange an initial assessment visit.
One of the limitations of the NDPP is that only people who have already had their blood
tested for HbA1c will be invited to join the programme, so many people who would
benefit from the programme are not being offered it.
The NHS Health Check programme assesses the cardiovascular risk of ”healthy”
people i.e. people not known to have a vascular disease (heart disease, stroke,
diabetes and others) in the 40-74 year age group. When people attend a Health Check
they are weighed and measured and asked various questions about their lifestyle.
From the collected information a diabetes risk score is calculated, and if it is over a
certain level the person should have or be referred for an HbA1c test. So the Health
Check programme both finds people who have undiagnosed diabetes, but also those at
risk of diabetes.
Currently in Wokingham a number of general practices are no longer providing NHS
Health Checks, and the new leisure provider, Places Leisure will be offering Health
Checks to eligible people once data transfer and clinical governance arrangements
have been sorted out. Places Leisure will have analysers to test HbA1c of patients who
score over the threshold on the diabetes risk assessment, so people can have the
results there and then rather than having to make a separate trip to the GP.
Analysis of Issues
Latest results of the Healthier You roll out in Wokingham will be presented at the
meeting.
Partner Implications
The impact of diabetes and obesity on health and social care is considerable, and if
these two inter-related issues were reduced it would reduce demand on resources.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
N/A
List of Background Papers
Diabetes Prevention for HOSC 19 November 18

47

Contact Julie Hotchkiss
Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6628

Service People Commissioning
Email julie.hotchkiss@wokingham.gov.uk

48

Wokingham Health Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
19 November 2018
49

Diabetes prevention
Julie Hotchkiss, Consultant in Public Health,
Wokingham BC
Jenny Wilson, Diabetes Prevention Programme
Coordinator, West Berkshire BC

50

51

52

53

54

55

Why are we all getting fatter?

56

In the mid 2000s, the Government
commissioned the Office for Science to do
a review of all the relevant studies across
numerous disciplines culminating in the
Foresight report “Tackling Obesities –
Future Choices” published in 2007.

57

Key messages

58

• Causes : extremely complex. From biology and behaviour
to cultural, environmental and social structure.
• Personal responsibility: crucial in weight gain, human
biology is being overwhelmed by the effects of today’s
‘obesogenic’ environment.
• ‘Passive obesity’: Abundance of energy dense food,
motorised transport, and sedentary lifestyles including
screen time.
• Inequalities: Some members of the population, including
the most disadvantaged, are especially vulnerable to the
conditions.

July-September 2018

Our activity

in numbers
117 stories
received
Most common topics:
Quality of Care, Access & Choice,
Communication

We were at:
Wokingham Libraries Summer
Reading Challenges
Wokingham Community Fun
Days

covering

Healthwatch Highlights

Agenda Item 28.

26

services

Children with Additional
Needs Event (Local Offer)

16

pop-ups in the
in the
community

For our full quarterly
59 intelligence report, visit

www.healthwatchwokingham.co.uk

1 of 2

One school’s
experience …

We gave information
& signposting
advice to

Assistant head of a
secondary school got
in touch after he
contacted a pupil’s GP
(with parental
permission) to ask for
some support with
regards mental health.
Was told by the GP
that it would cost £60
for him to respond by
letter.

67

enquirers
Our next focus:
Relaunch following successful award
of contract/c 19th Nov 2018
New website to be launched

Action we took …

Healthwatch raised with
CCG who confirmed the
General Medical
Services contract allows
a practice to charge for
a letter of advice to a
third party. CCG
acknowledges how
unhelpful this is for
fostering partnerships.

Currently awarded 3 Community
Investment Funds (mental health
focus). Event early 2019.

8 Volunteers
9 contributed

Healthwatch has
informed school about
free PPEP care training
(Psychological
Perspectives in
Education & Primary
Care).
Raised at Future in Mind
meeting which focuses
on system integration.

Stay in touch!

35
8

hours

Enhancing our reach

Help Desk took
HelpdeskWe

54 calls

Strategic focus for 2018/19

Including a distressed
caller who was in
crisis.

Average call time
45 mins

Adult Mental Health
Our ambition is to inform the
commissioning of adult mental
health services (Recovery
College) and to support user
involvement and engagement.

Help improve health & care services - tell us your experiences.

@HW Wokingham
Borough

60

0118 418 1 418

Healthwatch
Wokingham Borough

Icons: Icons8

enquiries@
enquiries@
healthwatchslough.co.uk
healthwatchwokingham.co.uk

Improving Client Experience During START Assessments
Robert* is a local resident who has complex
health issues which now requires him to
have assistance when travelling.
Robert applied to Wokingham Borough Council to
see if he was entitled to any funding for a carer
to assist him when he had to travel on public
transport. He was told he would have to be
assessed by the ‘START’ team. He found the
subsequent experience to be stressful and lacking
in information.

I found the whole process was lacking in
information to me as the client, it didn’t focus
on my primary issue which is support when
travelling alone. The experience didn’t feel
person centred at all. In fact, I found It very
stressful because I didn’t fully understand
what was going on and at times I found the
assessment demeaning.

Robert

Healthwatch met Robert to discuss his experience. The START team called Robert and
arranged a day to visit. Robert requested they only send one person as he would find it
stressful if there were several people in attendance. Robert did not receive a letter saying
who would be visiting or explaining the process or how long the process would take. On the
day of visit a lady arrived and said they would be assessing him in the home doing various
tasks, 4 times a day for 4 days. Robert challenged this and it was subsequently reduced to
twice a day for 3 days. Robert also didn’t understand why the assessment was focussed solely
on his home when his real difficulty was travelling alone on transport. During the initial visit
another member of the START team knocked on the door and when opened walked through to
living room without introducing himself. When challenged the person identified himself as
manager at START. He was reminded that they had agreed only one assessor at a time would
be present, this was accepted and the manager left. On the next visit a different assessor
came and a family member of Robert saw they ticked a box stating ‘OK with Glasses’. Robert
is registered as blind as he only has partial vision. They assessed him cooking a microwave
meal amongst other things. Some of the questions he was asked were very ‘closed’ in nature,
rather than ‘open’ questions where he could explain his full experience when doing a task.
Robert didn’t fully understand why he was being assessed in that way. At the end of the
process Robert was not given any information about what would happen next other than the
START team would be in contact at some point with a decision.

* note – not individuals real name

enquiries@
healthwatchwokingham.co.uk

@HW Wokingham
61
Borough

0118 418 1 418

Healthwatch
Wokingham Borough

This page is intentionally left blank

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE OF
MEETING
21 January
2019

ITEMS

PURPOSE OF REPORT

REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER / CONTACT
OFFICER
NHS Berkshire West
CCG

63

Pressure on GP
resources

To be updated on pressures on GP
resources locally

Update

Performance
Outcomes Report

To monitor performance and identify any
areas of concern

Challenge item

Democratic Services

Health Consultation
Report

Challenge item

Challenge item

Democratic Services

Healthwatch update

Challenge item

Challenge item

Healthwatch Wokingham
Borough

Agenda Item 29.

DATE OF
MEETING
6 March
2019

ITEMS
Briefing on impact
of Brexit on the
local health and
social care services
Discharge of
patients from
hospital and Better
Care Fund
Performance
Outcomes Report

PURPOSE OF REPORT

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER / CONTACT
OFFICER
NHS Berkshire West
CCG/ Adult Social Care

64

To receive a briefing on the impact of Brexit
on the local health and social care services

Update

To receive a briefing on the discharge of
patients from hospital and the Better Care
Fund

Update

RBH/ Martin Sloan

To monitor performance and identify any
areas of concern

Challenge item

Democratic Services

Health Consultation
Report

Challenge item

Challenge item

Democratic Services

Healthwatch update

Challenge item

Challenge item

Healthwatch Wokingham
Borough

Currently unscheduled topics:


REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

Draft Quality Accounts (April 2019)
 Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
 Royal Berkshire Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
 South Central Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust






Update on work of Clinical Commissioning Group
Weekend ‘bed blocking’
Progress of Community Health and Social Care implementation
Suicide Prevention Strategy implementation (include progress of Wokingham action plan)

65

This page is intentionally left blank

Glossary:


AAT – Assessment and Advice Team



AnDY – Anxiety and Depression in Young People Research Unit



Bariatrics – branch of medicine that deals with the causes, prevention, and
treatment of obesity.



BCF – Better Care Fund



BHFT – Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust



BW – Berkshire West



C&B – (Choose and Book) is a national electronic referral service which gives
patients a choice of place, date and time for their first outpatient appointment in a
hospital or clinic.



CAM - Confusion Assessment Method



CAMHS – Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services



CBT – Cognitive Behaviour Therapy



CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group



CDU – Clinical Decisions Unit



CHIS - Child Health Information Systems - patient administration systems that
provide a clinical record for individual children and support a variety of child health
and related activities, including universal services for population health and support
for statutory functions.



CHIMAT – Child Health Profiles



CKD – Chronic Kidney Disease



CNS – Clinical Nurse Specialist



Community Enhanced Service - a service provided in a community setting which
goes above and beyond what is normally commissioned by NHS England, including
primary care services that go beyond the scope of the GP contract.



Contract Query Notice - A specific action taken by the commissioner against the
Provider as per the contract. It is a notice served when a contractual target is not
being met. As a result of such a notice, an action must be agreed that results in
recovery of performance within a set timescale.



COPD – Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease

67



COF - Commissioning Outcomes Framework



CoSRR - Continuity of Services risk rating



CPA - Care Programme Approach - is a system of delivering community mental
health services to individuals diagnosed with a mental illness



CPE – Common Point of Entry



CPN - Community Psychiatric Nurse



CQC – Care Quality Commission



CQUIN – Commissioning for Quality and Innovation - Is an incentivised money
reward scheme that has been developed to allocate payments to providers if they
meet quality outcomes identified to improve local quality issues.



CST - Cognitive Stimulation Therapy



CSU - Commissioning Support Unit



Cytology – the study of cells



DPH – Director of Public Health



DNACPR - Do Not Attempt Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation



DTOC – Delayed Transfer of Care



EDT – Electronic Document Transfer



ECIST - Emergency Care Intensive Support Team



ECO – Emergency Operations Centre



EHA – Early Help Assessment



EHCP – Education, Health and Care Plan



EIP – Early Intervention in Psychosis



EOL – end of life care



EPR – Electronic Patient Record – means of viewing a patient’s medical record
via a computerised interface.



ESD – Early Supported Discharge service - pathways of care for people transferred
from an inpatient environment to a primary care setting to continue a period of
rehabilitation, reablement and recuperation at a similar level of intensity and
delivered by staff with the same level of expertise as they would have received in
the inpatient setting.

68



FFCE - First Finished Consultant Episode - first completed episode of a patient's
stay in hospital.



FPH – Frimley Park Hospital



GMS – General Medical Services



GOS - General Ophthalmic services



GRACe - General Referral Assessment Centre



GSCC – General Social Care Council



HALO - Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officer



HASU - Hyper-Acute Stroke Unit



HWPFT - Heatherwood and Wexham Park Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust



JSNA – Joint Strategic Needs Assessment



LA – local authority



LES – Local Enhanced Service



LGBT – Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender



LOS - Length of Stay



LTC – long term conditions



MDT – multi disciplinary team



MH – Mental Health



MHP - mental health practitioner



MIU – Minor Injuries Unit



Monitor - Oversees the performance of NHS Foundation Trusts



MSA - Mixed sex accommodation



NARP – National Ambulance Response Pilot



Never Events - Never Events are serious, largely preventable patient safety
incidents that should not occur if the available preventative measures have been
implemented



NHSCB – National Health Service Commissioning Board (now NHS England)

69



NHS Safety Thermometer –tool to measure 4 high volume patient safety issues –
falls in care; pressure ulcers; urinary infections (in patients with a urinary catheter);
and treatment for VTE



NICE – National Institute of Health and Care Excellence



NEL - Non elected admissions



OHPA – Office of the Health Professions Regulator



ONS – Office for National Statistics



OOH – Out of Hours



Ophthalmology – branch of medicine that deals with diseases of the eye



OPMHS – Older Persons Mental Health Services



Orthopaedics - branch of surgery concerned with conditions involving the
musculoskeletal system



OT – Occupational Therapy



Outlier - a person or thing situated away or detached from the main body or
system.



PALS – Patient Advice and Liaison Service



PHE – Public Health England



PHOF – Public Health Outcomes Framework



PMS – Primary Medical Services



PPCI – Primary Percutaneous Coronary Intervention



PPIs - Proton Pump Inhibitors



PROMs - Patient Reported Outcome measures are questions asked of patients
before and after a specific treatment, to measure improvements to quality of life
from the patient’s point of view.



PWP – Psychological wellbeing practitioner



QIPP - Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention. The purpose of the
programme is to support commissioners and providers to develop service
improvement and redesign initiatives that improve productivity, eliminate waste and
drive up clinical quality.



RAT – Rapid Access Treatment

70



RBFT/ RBH - Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust



RCA – Root Cause Analysis - When incidents happen, Roots Cause Analysis
Investigation is a means of ensuring that lessons are learned across the NHS to
prevent the same incident occurring elsewhere.



RGN - Registered General Nurses



RMN - Registered Mental Health Nurses



RTT - referral to treatment time – waiting time between being referred and
beginning treatment.



SCAS – South Central Ambulance Service



SCR – Summary Care Record - electronic record which contains information about
the medicines you take, allergies you suffer from and any bad reactions to
medicines you have had in the past.



SCT – Sluggish cognitive tempo



SEAP – Support Empower Advocate Promote - confidential, independent advocacy
service (health and mental health)



SEMH - Social, Emotional and Mental Health



SHaRON - Support Hope and Recovery Online Network – supports; Young people
with eating disorders, Families of young people with or waiting for an assessment
for autism, New mums with mental health difficulties and partners and carers of a
new mum with mental health difficulties



SHMI - Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator - ratio between the actual
number of patients who die following treatment at a trust and the number that would
be expected to die on the basis of average England figures, given the
characteristics of the patients treated there. Covers all deaths reported of patients
who were admitted to non-specialist acute trusts in England and either die while in
hospital or within 30 days of discharge.



SIRI – Serious incidents that require investigation



SLA – Service Level Agreement



SLT – Speech and Language Therapy



SPOC – Single point of contact



SRG – Systems Resilience Group



SSNAP - Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme

71



STAR-PU - Specific Therapeutic group Age-sex Related Prescribing Units - a
way of weighting patients to account for differences in demography when
distributing resources or comparing prescribing.



SUSD – Step Up Step Down



Talking Therapies – free and confidential counselling service with a team of
advisors and therapists.



Thrombolysis – breakdown of blood clots by pharmacological means



TIA - transient ischemic attack – mini stroke



TTO – to take out



TVPCA – Thames Valley Primary Care Agency



UCC – Urgent Care Centre



VTE - venous thrombosis -blood clot that forms within a vein



WBCH – West Berkshire Community Hospital



WIC – Walk in Centre



WISP – Wokingham Integration Strategic Partnership



WTE - whole-time equivalents (in context of staff)



YLL – years of life lost



YPWD - Younger People with Dementia



YTD – Year to date

72

